

UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20436

In the Matter of

CERTAIN FOAM FOOTWEAR

Investigation No. 337-TA-567

NOTICE OF COMMISSION DECISION TO MODIFY A FINAL INITIAL
DETERMINATION AND TO TERMINATE THE INVESTIGATION WITH A FINDING
OF NO VIOLATION OF SECTION 337

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that the U.S. International Trade Commission has determined to modify a final initial determination ("ID") of the presiding administrative law judge ("ALJ"). The Commission has determined that there is no violation of section 337 in the above-captioned investigation.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Clint Gerdine, Esq., Office of the General Counsel, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20436, telephone (202) 708-2310. Copies of non-confidential documents filed in connection with this investigation are or will be available for inspection during official business hours (8:45 a.m. to 5:15 p.m.) in the Office of the Secretary, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20436, telephone (202) 205-2000. General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its Internet server at <http://www.usitc.gov>. The public record for this investigation may be viewed on the Commission's electronic docket (EDIS) at <http://edis.usitc.gov>. Hearing-impaired persons are advised that information on this matter can be obtained by contacting the Commission's TDD terminal on (202) 205-1810.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The Commission instituted this investigation on May 11, 2006, based on a complaint, as amended, filed by Crocs, Inc. ("Crocs") of Niwot, Colorado. 71 *Fed. Reg.* 27514 (2006). The amended complaint alleges violations of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. § 1337), in the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, and the sale within the United States after importation of certain foam footwear, by reason of infringement of claims 1-2 of U.S. Patent No. 6,993,858 ("the '858 patent"); U.S. Patent No. D517,789 ("the '789 patent"); and the Crocs trade dress (the image and overall appearance of Crocs-brand footwear). The complaint further alleges that an industry in the United States exists as required by subsection (a)(2) of section 337. The complaint requests

RECEIVED
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
U.S. INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
JUL 25 AM 11:54

that the Commission issue a permanent general exclusion order and permanent cease and desist orders. The complaint identifies 11 respondents that include: (1) Collective Licensing International, LLC (“Collective”) of Englewood, Colorado; (2) Double Diamond Distribution Ltd. (“Double Diamond”) of Saskatoon, Saskatchewan; (3) Effervescent Inc. (“Effervescent”) of Fitchburg, Massachusetts; (4) Gen-X Sports, Inc. (“Gen-X Sports”) of Toronto, Ontario; (5) Holey Soles Holding Ltd. (“Holey Soles”) of Vancouver, British Columbia; (6) Australia Unlimited, Inc. of Seattle, Washington; (7) Cheng’s Enterprises Inc. of Carlstadt, New Jersey; (8) D. Myers & Sons, Inc. of Baltimore, Maryland; (9) Inter-Pacific Trading Corp. of Los Angeles, California; (10) Pali Hawaii of Honolulu, Hawaii; and (11) Shaka Shoes of Kaliua-Kona, Hawaii. The Commission terminated the investigation as to the trade dress allegation on September 11, 2006. A twelfth respondent, Old Dominion Footwear, Inc. of Madison Heights, Virginia, was added to the investigation on October 10, 2006. All but five respondents have been terminated from the investigation on the basis of a consent order, settlement agreement, or undisputed Commission determination of non-infringement. The five remaining respondents are: (1) Collective; (2) Double Diamond; (3) Effervescent; (4) Gen-X Sports; and (5) Holey Soles.

On April 11, 2008, the ALJ issued his final ID finding no violation of section 337 by the remaining respondents. The Commission extended the deadline for determining whether to review the final ID until June 18, 2008.

On June 18, 2008, the Commission determined to review-in-part the final ID. Particularly, the Commission determined to review: 1) the ALJ’s findings concerning non-infringement of the ‘789 patent by the respondents’ products and lack of satisfaction of the technical prong of the domestic industry requirement by Crocs’ footwear; and 2) the ALJ’s finding of invalidity with respect to the ‘858 patent.

Having reviewed the record in this investigation, including the final ID and the parties’ briefing, the Commission has determined to modify and clarify parts of the final ID concerning non-infringement and lack of satisfaction of the technical prong of the domestic industry requirement relating to the ‘789 patent and invalidity of the ‘858 patent. The Commission affirms the final ID with the modifications and clarifications set forth in its separately issued Opinion, and terminates the investigation with a finding of no violation of section 337.

The authority for the Commission’s determination is contained in section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337, and in section 210.45 of the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 C.F.R. §§ 210.45.

By order of the Commission.



Marilyn R. Abbott
Secretary to the Commission

Issued: July 25, 2008

PUBLIC CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Marilyn R. Abbott, hereby certify that the attached NOTICE OF COMMISSION DECISION TO MODIFY A FINAL INITIAL DETERMINATION AND TO TERMINATE THE INVESTIGATION WITH A FINDING OF NO VIOLATION OF SECTION 337 has been served by hand upon the Commission Investigative Attorney, Benjamin Levi, Esq., and the following parties as indicated, on July 25, 2008.

[Handwritten signature of Marilyn R. Abbott]

Marilyn R. Abbott, Secretary
U.S. International Trade Commission
500 E Street, SW
Washington, DC 20436

ON BEHALF OF COMPLAINANT CROCS, INCORPORATED:

Michael A. Ladra, Esq.
James C. Otteson, Esq.
Thomas T. Carmack, Esq.
WILSON SONSINI GOODRICH & ROSATI
650 Page Mill Road
Palo Alto, California 94304
P-650-493-9300

- () Via Hand Delivery
() Via Overnight Mail
(x) Via First Class Mail
() Other:

Michael A. Berta, Esq.
Ariana M. Chung-Han, Esq.
WILSON SONSINI GOODRICH & ROSATI
One Market, Spear Street Tower
Suite 3300
San Francisco, California 94105
P-415-947-2000

- () Via Hand Delivery
() Via Overnight Mail
(x) Via First Class Mail
() Other:

ON BEHALF OF RESPONDENTS COLLECTIVE LICENSING INTERNATIONAL, LLC, EFFERVESCENT, INC. AND HOLEY SOLES HOLDING, LTD.:

Smith R. Brittingham, IV, Esq.
Elizabeth A. Niemeyer, Esq.

- () Via Hand Delivery
() Via Overnight Mail

**FINNEGAN, HENDERSON, FARABOW, GARRETT
& DUNNER, LLP**

901 New York Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20001
P-202-408-4000
F-202-408-4400

Via First Class Mail
 Other: _____

William A. Rudy, Esq.
LATHROP & GAGE L.C.

2345 Grand Boulevard
Suite 2800
Kansas City, MO 64108
P-816-292-2000
F-816-292-2001

Via Hand Delivery
 Via Overnight Mail
 Via First Class Mail
 Other: _____

Michael G. Martin, Esq.
Michael Roche, Esq.
LATHROP & GAGE L.C.

Republic Plaza, Suite 4650
370 Seventeenth Street
Denver, CO 80202
P-720-931-3200
F-720-931-3201

Via Hand Delivery
 Via Overnight Mail
 Via First Class Mail
 Other: _____

Stephen J. Horace, Esq.
LATHROP & GAGE L.C.

4845 Pearl East Circle
Suite 300
Boulder, CO 80301
P-720-931-3000
F-720-931-3001

Via Hand Delivery
 Via Overnight Mail
 Via First Class Mail
 Other: _____

**ON BEHALF OF RESPONDENT GEN-X-SPORT,
INC.:**

John J. Marshall, Esq.
DRINKER BIDDLE & REATH, LLP

1000 Westlakes Drive
Suite 300
Berwyn, PA 19312-2405
P-610-993-2200
F-610-993-8585

Via Hand Delivery
 Via Overnight Mail
 Via First Class Mail
 Other: _____

Hallum O. Bailey, Esq.
Andrea L. D'Ambra, Esq.
DRINKER BIDDLE & REATH, LLP

Via Hand Delivery
 Via Overnight Mail
 Via First Class Mail

One Logan Square
18th and Cherry Streets
Philadelphia, PA 19103-6996
P-215-988-2700
F-215-988-2757

() Other: _____

Kenneth P. Waszkiewicz, Esq.
DRINKER BIDDLE & REATH, LLP
1500 K Street, NW
Suite 1100
Washington, DC 20005
F-202-887-0763

() Via Hand Delivery
() Via Overnight Mail
() Via First Class Mail
() Other: _____

**ON BEHALF OF RESPONDENT AUSTRALIA
UNLIMITED, INC.:**

Charles F. Schill, Esq.
Susan Koegel, Esq.
STEPTOE & JOHNSON LLP
1330 Connecticut Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20036
P-202-429-3000
F-202-429-3902

() Via Hand Delivery
() Via Overnight Mail
() Via First Class Mail
() Other: _____

W. David Shenk, Esq.
Robert J. Carlson, Esq.
**CHRISTENSEN O'CONNOR JOHNSON KINDNESS,
PLLC**
1420 Fifth Avenue, Suite 2800
Seattle, WA 980101-2347
P-206-682-8100
F-206-224-0779

() Via Hand Delivery
() Via Overnight Mail
() Via First Class Mail
() Other: _____

ON BEHALF OF CHENG'S ENTERPRISES, INC.:

John T. Johnson, Esq.
Irene E. Hudson, Esq.
FISH & RICHARDSON P.C.
153 East 53rd Street
Citigroup Center – 52nd Floor
New York, NY 10022-4611

() Via Hand Delivery
() Via Overnight Mail
() Via First Class Mail
() Other: _____

Andrew R. Kposidas, Esq.
FISH & RICHARDSON P.C.
1425 K Street, NW

() Via Hand Delivery
() Via Overnight Mail
() Via First Class Mail

Washington, DC 20005
P-202-783-5070
F-202-783-2331

() Other: _____

**ON BEHALF OF RESPONDENT DOUBLE
DIAMOND DISTRIBUTION:**

Carrie A. Shufflebarger, Esq.
GREENBAUM DOLL & MCDONALD
2800 Chemed Center
255 East Fifth Street
Cincinnati, OH 45202-4728
P-513-455-7600
F-513-455-8500

() Via Hand Delivery
() Via Overnight Mail
() Via First Class Mail
() Other: _____

**INTEVENOR RESPONDENT ON BEHALF OF OLD
DOMINION FOOTWEAR COMPANY:**

Sturgis M. Sobin, Esq.
HELLER EHRMAN LLP
1717 Rhode Island Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20036
P-202-912-2000
F-202-912-2020

() Via Hand Delivery
() Via Overnight Mail
() Via First Class Mail
() Other: _____